mm——TANDLIANWALA
SUGAR MILLS LTD. "

Annual Report




TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

28" Annual Report

CONTENTS

COMPANY INFORMATION oo 2
VISION, MISSION & STRATEGY oo 3
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  ....ccooiiiiiiiiii e 4
DIRECTORS 'REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ..o 6
SIX YEARS REVIEW AT A GLANCE e 10
PATTERN OF HOLDING OF SHARES ... 1
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCGE ..ottt 14
REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE — ......cccooveiee, 17
AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ..o 19
BALANCE SHEET oo 20
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ..ot 22
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ..o 23
CASH FLOW STATEMENT ..o 24
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY oo 25
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS ..o e 26
FORM OF PROXY oottt 69

Annual Report 2016 -



TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Company Sceretary and
Chicf Financial Officer

Bankers

Legal Advisors

Audit Committec

Auditors

Share Registrar

Sugar Mills:
Unit 1

Unit 2

Unit 3
Distillery:
Unit 1

Unit 2

Top Gas:

Registered Oftice

- Annual Report 2016

Mr. Ghazi Khan
Mr. Akbar Khan

(Chairman)
(Chicf Exccutive)

Mr. Haroon Khan

Mrs. Rasheeda Begum

Mirs. Mobina Akbar Khan

Mr. Saeed Ullah Khan Paracha
Mr. Tahir Farooq Malik

Mr. Ahmad Jehanzeb Khan

Allied Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Habib Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan Limited
The Bank of Punjab

United Bank [Limited

Bandial & Associates
House # 12/A, Block ‘H’

2) Ali Subtain Fazli & Associales
Mall Mansion 30

Gulberg IT, Lahore The Mall, Lahore

Mr. Saeed Ullah Khan Paracha Chairman
Mr, Haroon Khan Member
Mr. Ghazi Khan Mecmbcer
Mr. Khalid Siddique Scerctary

KPMG Tascer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Corplink (Privatc) Limited
1-K, Model Town, Lahore

Kanjwani, Tehsil Tandlianwala
District, Faisalabad

Taunsa Road, Indus Highway,
Dera Ismail Khan

Shah Jamal Road,
Muzaffargarh

Kanjwani, Tehsil Tandlianwala
District, Faisalabad

Shah Jamal Road,
Muzaftargarh

Kanjwani, Tehsil Tandlianwala
District, Faisalabad

66-L, Gulberg-IT, Lahore



TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

VISION, MISSION & STRATEGY

Mission

® To be the market leader and a world-class organization by meeting and proactively
anticipating customer nceds.

e To maximizc the wealth of stakcholders by optimizing the long term rcturns and growth
of the business.

* To be amongst the most efficient and lowest cost producers in the industry.

e To ensure a safe, harmonious and challenging working environment (or the employees.

Corporate Strategy

e To grow our base business in sugar and build those related activities where there is
opportunity to smooth the impact of sugar price cycles.

¢ To produce sugar which is of highest international standards.

¢ To make investment in sugarcane crop to ensure regular supply of cane and profitability
of growecrs.

e To cstablish modern corporate sugarcanc farm of intcrnational standards.
e To offer equal and fair growth opportunities to all employees.

e To undertake and support community development and welfare projects in order to fulfill
social commitments.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that twenty eighth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
the Company will be held on Thursday March 02, 201 7 at 10:00 am, at Noor Shadi Hall 49-
N, Industrial Area Gulberg-II, Lahore to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
February 29, 2016,

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended September 30, 2016 together with Directors' and Auditors' Reports
thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors for the year 2016-2017 and fix their remuneration. The present

Auditors M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and being
eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4, To transact any other ordinary business with the permission of the Chair.
SPECIAL BUSINESS
1. To elect seven (7) directors as fixed by the Board of the Company pursuant to

Section 178(1) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 for three years. The names of
retiring directors are as follows:

Mr. Akbar Khan Mrs. Mobina Akbar Khan

Mr. Haroon Khan Mr. Saeed Ullah Khan Paracha
Mr. Ghazi Khan Mr. Tahir Farooq Malik

Mrs. Rasheeda Begum

Statement under section 160(1) (b} of the Companies Ordinance, 1984

The statement set out material facts concerning “Special Business” to be transacted at the
281 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on March 02, 2017. The approval of
the members will be sought for:

Election of Directors

The term of office of the present Directors of the Company will expire after 3 years. In
terms of Section 178(1) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the directors have fixed the
number of elected directors at seven (7) to be elected in the Annual General Meeting for the
next term of three years.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Any person who seeks to contest the election of directors shall, whether he/she is a retiring
director or otherwise, file with the Company the following documents and information at
its registered office not later than fourteen days before the day of the above said meeting:

His/her Folio No./CDC Investors Account No./CDC Participant No./Sub-Account No.

a) Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for the election of directors in

terms of Section 178(3) of the Companics Ordinance, 1984;

b) Consent to act as director on Form 28 under section 184 of the Companies

Ordinance, 1984,

¢) A detailed profile alongwith his/her office address as required under SECP’s SRO
634(1)2015 dated July 10, 2014.

d) An attested copy of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC).

e) A declaration that:

e He/she is not ineligible to become a director of the Company under any
applicable laws and regulations (including listing regulations of Stock
Exchanges).

e He/she is not serving as director of more than seven listed companies. Provided
that this limit shall not include the directorship in the listed subsidiaries of a
listed holding company.

e Ncither he/she nor his/her spousc is engaged in the business of brokerage or is
a sponsor director or officer of a corporate brokerage house.

e He/she is aware of his/her duties and powers under the relevant laws,
Memorandum & Articles of Association of Company and listing regulations of
stock cxchanges.

Lahore: February 08, 2017. By order of the Board
Ahmad Jehanzeb Khan
Company Secretary
NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 23-02-201 7 to
02-03-201 7 (both days inclusive) for entitlement, attending and voting at Annual
General Meeting. Physical Transfers/CDS Transactions IDS received in order in all
respects at the close of the Business on 22-02-2017 at the Company‘s Share
Registrar M /s Corplink (Pvt) Ltd, Wing Arcade, 1-K Commercial Area Model Town
attending of the meeting.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member
as proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf, Forms of Proxy to be valid must be
properly fitted in/executed and received at the Registered Office of the Company at
66-L, Gulberg-11, Lahore, at least 48 hours before the time of this meeting.

3. Members are advised to promptly notify change in their postal address, if any, to the
Company’s Sharc Registrar.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Directors’ Report

The Directors of the Company are pleased to welcome you at the 28" Annual General
Meeting and to place before you the Audited Financial Statements of the Company together
with the Director’s Report thereon, for the year ended September 30, 2016.

Sugar Division

All Sugar producing Units of your Company (TSML) started sugarcane crushing in the month of
November 2015. The years sale turnover of Rs 18.7 Billion and the pre-tax profit amounting to
Rs 934 Million are the highest ever achieved in the history of the Company which is partly
attributable to better local sugar prices and timely exports , as well as reduction in the
Finance Cost during the year in comparison to last year owing to reduction of long term debt
and SBP discount rates.

The Company has achieved the net profit of Rs 898 million in comparison to last year amount
of Rs 592 million. The sugarcane prices in Punjab & KPK provinces, for the crushing season
2015-2016 remained un-changed and fixed at Rs 180 per 40 kg. Our growers were happy with
our continuous policy of making timely payments.

The increase in the profits shows that the TSML group has an ability to handle the operations
in an efficient and excellent manner although the situation for sugar manufacturing sector is

quite tough and challenging.

Pakistan has become a net exporter of sugar since last few years and TSML continued to be
one the largest exporters of sugar in the country.

Ethanol & Ancillary Division

The Distillery Division has always been a key operating segment due to its achievements and
better results, especially since the establishment of our second, state of the art distillery.

Although the international prices of ethanol registered a sharp decline this year, coupled with
the fact that we procured additional molasses at higher prices to supplement our own

production, but we still managed to achieve reasonable profits in our Distillery Division.

We continued to maintain the position of being the largest producer as well as the highest
Exporter of ethanol in Pakistan for second year in running.

Our Top Gas {(C0O2) segment also consistently maintained its profitability, although we faced
tough competition from the competitors in market .
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Future Outlook of the Company

In the current season (2016-2017) all our three sugar producing units started crushing by end
of November, 2016. The sugarcane crop is slightly higher during this season, as compared to
the year under review. The sugarcane price remained unchanged during the current season at
Rs 180 per 40 kg. However, the upward trend of sugar prices is encouraging since start of
crushing season 2016-17 and if they remain stable, it is expected that the current season can
be a game changer for the sugar sector in future, as Pakistan is turning out to be a surplus
producer of sugar in years to come, so a long term and consistent Sugar export policy is need
of the hour and should be enacted by the government.

Taking consideration of the changing scenarios of the sector, we are now in the process of
investing in plant efficiency and upgradation at all our 3 sugar producing units, resulting in
energy savings at both our distillery units, which in turn will definitely lead the TSML group
towards improvement of the future profitability by making processes more efficient and
getting reasonably self sufficient in indigenous molasses.

Statement on Corporate and financial reporting framework

e These financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly
its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

¢ Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements except for as disclosed in Note 2.3 of the audited financial statements for the
year., Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

e International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of Companies
Ordinance, 1984, as applicable in Pakistan, have heen followed in preparation of financial
statements and any departure there from, if any has been adequately disclosed and
explained.

e The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

¢ There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern
as it has adequate resources and improving its results to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future as has been explained in the Chief Executive's Review and financial
statements.

e There has been no material departure from the best practices of the corporate
governance as detailed in the listing regulations and properly disclosed in the Statement
of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance except for paragraph 24 as
disclosed in statement of compliance with the code of corporate governance.

¢ A statement regarding key financial data for the last six years is annexed to this report.

e Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements,
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Six Years Review at a Glance

The six years review at a glance is annexed.

Pattern of Shareholdings

The pattern of shareholdings as on September 30, 2016 is annexed.

Audit Committee

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee consisting of three members including
Chairman of the Committee. The Committee regularly meets as per requirement of the code.
The Committee assists the Board in reviewing internal audit manual and internal audit
system.

Human Resource Committee

The Board has constituted a Human Resource Committee in compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance 2012,

Board Meetings

There have been 11 meetings during the year and the attendance of each director is stated as
under:

Name of Directors Board Audit Committee Human . Resourc.:e and
Remuneration Committee

Attended | Required | Attended | Required | Attended Required

NON — EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ghazi Khan 5 5 5 5 1 1

Mr. Tahir Farooq Malik 5 5 5 5 1 1

Mrs. Rasheeda Begum S 5

Mrs. Mobina Akkar Khan | 5 4 1 1

Mr. Saeed Ullah Khan 5 4 5 5

Paracha

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Akbar Khan ) 5

Mr. Haroon Khan 5 5

(Howeuver, leaves of absence were granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board
Meetings due to their preoccupations.)

Directors training program

All the Directors of the Company are exempt from Directors training program on the basis of
experience criteria.
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Trading in Shares

Trading in shares by Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor
children has been disclosed in FORM 34 annexed to this annual report.

Outstanding Statutory Dues

Details of outstanding dues towards minimum tax and those relating to other statutory
obligations are set out in note 15 and 31 respectively.

Dividend
No dividend is being recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended September 30, 2016.

Staff Retirement Benefits

The company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all employees with qualifying
service period of six months.

Auditors
The present auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi and Co., Chartered Accountants retire and offer

themselves for reappointment. The Audit Committee has recommended their re-
appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending September 30, 2017.

Appreciation
The Board would like to articulate their appreciation for the allegiance, hard toil of the

workers, staff and members of the management team. Growers are the key element of our
industry and we thank them for their continued co-operation.

On behalf of Board of Directors

Akbar Khan
(Chief Executive Officer)
February 08, 2017
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Sales (Net)

Cost ol Salus

Gross profit

Operating, tinancial and

other expenses

Other income
Net profit / (loss) before wppf

Workers® prefit pariicipation [und
Workers” Welfare fund

Net (loss) / profit before
Taxation

Provision lor axalion
Net (loss) / profit after
taxation

Cash dividend
(Loss) / Earning per share (Rs.)

Authorized capital
Paid-up capital

Fixed capital expenditures (Net)

OPERATING RESULTS

Sugarcane crushed - Unit - 1
Sugarcanc crushed - Umi - 2
Sugarcane crushed - Unit- 3
Sugar production - Unit - 1
Sugar production - Uil - 2

Sugar production - Unit - 3

Scason started - Unit - 1
Season started - Unit - 2
Scason started - Unil - 3
Season closed - Lnil - 1
Season closed - Unit- 2
Scason closed - Unit - 3
Crushing days - Unit - 1
Crushing days - Unit - 2
Crushing days - Unit - 3

SIX YEARS REVIEW AT A GLANCE
Figures in '000

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees)

18,675,054 16,520294 12,999,789 12,294.796 %.376.917 7.759.465

16,258,134 14,301,181 11,574,518 11,435,215 7,508,390 6,321,536

2,416,920 2,219,113 1,425,271 859,581 868,527 1,437,929

1.542.640 1,674,897 1,393,962 1263727 1.029.841 912.167

874,280 544216 31,309 (404,146) (161,314) 525,762

108,495 70,303 54,161 119,737 13.083 6,416

982,775 614,519 85,471 (284,409) (148,231) 532,178

49,139 30,726 4,274 = = 26,609

3 } - . (11.826)

933,636 583,793 81,197 (284,409) (148,231) 517,395

(35.669) 7,833 165,927 (98.210) 197.690 (22.839)

897.967 591,626 247,124 382,71 49.459 494,556

7.63 5.03 2,10 325 042 420

1.200.000 1,200,000 1.200.000 1.200,000 1,200,000 1.200.000

1.177.063 1.177.063 1.177.063 1.177.063 1.177.063 1.177.063

10,686,598  10.941.621 1.974.240  71.645.295 54602235 5.221.206

M. Tans 587.336 505,953 627,342 556,144 457.219 472,492
M. Tons 850,065 1,030,447 1.068,301 724,066 465,491 593,420
M. Tans 1,190,605 1,214,159 1,273,466 897.054 686.936 514,105
M. Tons 50,392 45 488 57,405 50,997 43311 43,261
M. Tons 76,474 95,011 90,720 61,172 39,015 49,683
M. Tans 120,512 124,611 121,472 85,201 67.042 47,732

27-11-2015  25-11-2014 19-11-2013  29-11-2012 18-11-2011 26-11-2010
15-12-2015  04-12-2014  25-11-2013  29-11-2012 29-11-2011 26-11-2010
27-11-2015  28-11-2014  20-11-2013  29-11-2012 18-11-2011 26-11-2010
13-03-2016  15-03-2015  29-03-2014  30-03-2013 23-03-2012 07-04-2011
01-04-2016  11-04-2015  21-03-2014  01-04-2013 29-03-2012 01-04-2011
20-03-2016  28-03-2015  05-04-2014  03-04-2013 12-04-2012 01-04-2011

No. 108 111 121 122 127 133
No. 109 129 117 124 122 127
No. L1s 121 137 126 147 127
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE 1984
(Section 236(1) and 464)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1. Incorporation Number [ L-01226 |
2. Name of the Company [ TANDLIANWALA SUGARMILLS LIMITED |
3. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at | 30-09-2016 |

------Shareholding------

and their spouse and minor childern

5.2 Associated Companies,
undertakings and related

parties.

Annual Report 2016

4. No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
113 1 100 3,359

424 101 500 201,698

58 501 1,000 49,991

60 1,001 5,000 130,962

10 5,001 10,000 67,750

4 10,001 15,000 53,761

3 15,001 20,000 53,607

1 20,001 25,000 21,500

4 25,001 30,000 110,320

1 45,001 50,000 45,500

1 140,001 145,000 144,300

1 550,001 555,000 552,500

2 1,390,001 1,395,000 2,789,689

1 1,395,001 1,400,000 1,395,343

1 1,400,001 1,405,000 1,401,747

1 1,890,001 1,895,000 1,894,064

1 3,290,001 3,295,000 3,294,155

1 5,455,001 5,460,000 5,459,419

1 5,745,001 5,750,000 5,745,514

1 10,610,001 10,615,000 10,610,937

1 20,195,001 20,200,000 20,197,535

1 20,250,001 20,255,000 20,253,274

1 21,525,001 21,530,000 21,528,357

1 21,700,001 21,705,000 21,701,018

693 117,706,300

5. Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage
5.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officers, 92,969,518 78.9843%
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

5.3 Banks,Funds,Development 231,640 0.1968%
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions,etc

5.4 Share holders holding 10% 89,321,363 75.8849%
5.5 General Public
a. Local 13,894,205 11.8041%
b. Foreign —

5.6 Others (to be specified)
Foreign Companies 10,610,937 9.0148%

6. Signature of
Company Secretary

7. Name of Signatory [AHMAD JEHANZEB KHAN |
8. Designation [COMPANY SECRETARY |
9. NIC Number [ 35201-5789985-5 |
10 Date [ 30 | 09 | 2016 |
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Catagories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on September 30, 2016

No. of
Sr. No. |[Name Shares Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Chidren (Name Wise Detail):
1 MR. AKBAR AKHTAR KHAN 21,592,481 18.3444%
2 MR. HAROON AKHTAR KHAN 23,129,465 19.6502%
3 MR. GHAZI AKHTAR KHAN 22,951,400 19.4989%
4 MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM 21,648,017 18.3916%
5 MRS. MCBINA AKBAR KHAN 1,000 0.0008%
6 MR. SAEEDULLAH KHAN PARACHA 3,094,155 2.6287%
7 MR. TAHIR FAROOQ MALIK 500 0.0004%
8 MRS. SHAHNAZ W/O SAEEDULLAH KHAN PARACHA 552,500 0.4694%
Executives: - -
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 231,640 0.1968%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)
Holding Percentage

S. No.
1

DL WN

Name

MR. AKBAR AKHTAR KHAN

MR. HAROON AKHTAR KHAN

MR. GHAZI AKHTAR KHAN

MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM

TODDI INVESTMENTS LIMITED.

MR. HAMEED ULLAH KHAN PARACHA

21,592,481
23,129,465
22,951,400
21,648,017
10,610,937

7,639,578

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S. No.
1
2

NAME
MR. HAROON AKHTAR KHAN (CDC)
MR. GHAZI AKHTAR KHAN (CDC)
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SALE

0
0

18.3444%
19.6502%
19.4989%
18.3916%
9.0148%
6.4904%

PURCHASE
51,230
46,700
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

For the year ended 30 September 2016

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance
(“the code”) contained in clause 5.19 of chapter 5 of Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance,
whereby a listed Company is managed in compliance with the best practices of
corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the code in the following manner:

1.

The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive
directors and directors representing minority interests on its Board of Directors.
At 30 September 2016, the Board includes:

Category Names

Executive Directors i. Mr. Akbar Khan
ii. Mr. Haroon Khan

Non-Executive Directors iii. Mr. Ghazi Khan

iv. Mr. Tahir Faroog Malik

v. Mrs. Rasheeda Begum

vi. Mrs. Mobina Akbar Khan

vii. Mr. Saeed Ullah Khan Paracha

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more
than seven listed companies, including the Company.

All the resident Directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none
of them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFIl or an
NBFI or, being a broker of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by
that stock exchange.

No causal vacancy in the Board of Directors has occurred during the year ended
30 September 2016.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has insured that
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company
along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of
significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or
amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material
transactions, including appointment and determination of remuneration and
terms and conditions of employment of the CEO, other executive and non
executive Directors, have been taken by the Board.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his
absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board met
at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with
agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the
meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and
circulated.

All the Directors on the Board are well conversant with their responsibilities as
Directors of corporate bodies as the Company had arranged briefing for its
Directors to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities. All the Directors of
the Company are exempt from Directors training program on the basis of
experience criteria.

No new appointment of CFO, Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit has
occurred during the year.

The Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 September 2016 has been prepared
in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully describes the salient
matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEO and
CFO before approval of the Board.

The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the
Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting
requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.

The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three members. All
the members are non-executive directors including the Chairman of the
Committee.

Name Designation Category

Mr. Saeed Ullah Khan Paracha Chairman/Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ghazi Khan Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Tahir Farocq Malik Member Non-Executive Director

The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once in every quarter
prior to approval of interim and final results of the Company as required by the
Code of Corporate Governance. The terms of reference of the committee have
been formed and advised to the committee for compliance.

The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of
following three Board members, all of whom are non-executive directors
including the chairman of the committee.

Name Designation Category

Mrs. Rasheeda Begam Chairman/Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ghazi Khan Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Tahir Farooq Malik Member Non-Executive Director
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24.

Lahore

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function within in the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been
given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners
of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Listing
Regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

The “close period” prior to the announcement of interim/final results and
business decisions, which may materially affect the market price of the
Company’s securities, was determined and intimated to Directors, employees
and stock exchange(s).

Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market
participants at once through stock exchange(s).

The Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of
register of persons having access to inside information by designated senior
management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper record including
basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have been
complied with except the following, towards which reasonable progress is being
made by the Company to seek compliance by the end of next accounting year:

a. The company did not have any Independent Director during the year
ended 30 September 2016 as per the requirement of sub-clause (b) of
clause 5.19.1 of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

b. None of the members (including Chairman) of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Director as per sub-clause (a) of clause 5.19.16 of Rule Book
of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

Ghazi Khan Akbar Khan

08 February 2017 Chairman Chief Executive
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Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices
contained in the Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”) prepared by the Board
of Directors of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) for the year
ended 30 September 2016 to comply with the requirements of clause 5.19 of chapter
5 of the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance
can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for
their review and approval of its related party transactions distinguishing between
transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and
recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Bocard of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures
to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s
length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s
compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as
applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 September 2016.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of
the Code as reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the
Statement of Compliance:
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Paragraph Reference

‘ Description

i) Paragraph 24(a)

ii) Paragraph 24 (b)

Lahore

Date: 08 February 2017

At present there is no Independent
Director on the Company’s Board of
Directors as required under sub-clause
(b) of clause 5.19.1 of the Rule Book of
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

Under sub-clause (a) of clause 5.19.16 of
the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited, the Audit Committee
shall have at least one Independent
Director who shall preferably be the
chairman of the committee. Since, there
is no Independent Director on the Board,
this requirement is not complied with.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co
Chartered Accountant
(Kamran Igbal Yousafi)
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Auditors' Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (“the
Company”) as at 30 September 2016 and the related profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with
the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of
internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the
approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan.
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates
made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due
verification, we report that:

a) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b) in our opinion:

i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with
the bocks of account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently
applied except for the change as stated in note 2.3 to the financial statements with which
we concur;

ii} the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business;
and

iii) the business conducted, investment made and expenditure incurred during the year were
in accordance with the objects of the Company;

¢) in our opinion and to the best of aur information and according to the explanations given to
us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow
statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the
information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 September
2016 and of the profit, its comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the
year then ended; and

d) in our opinion no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980
(XVIII of 1980).

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Date: 08 February 2017 {Kamran Igbal Yousafi}
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Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2016

2015
Rupees

1,200,000,000

1,177,063,000
1.727,382,859
1,971,962,036

4,876,407,895

1,244,915,364
144,757,046
1,429,124,273

187,602,200
41,768,921

3,048,167,804

6.518,817,533
450,239,318
1,942,606,092
204,952,492

9,116,615,435

2016
Note Rupeces
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised capital
120,000,000 (2015: 120,000,000) sharcs of Rs. 10 cach 1,200,000,000
Tssued, subscribed and paid-up capital 6 1,177,063,000
Rescrves 7 2,617,707,211
Loan from Dircctors - unsecured 8 1,935,050,170
5,729.820,381
Non _current liabilities
Long term financces - secured 9 915,998,593
Liabilitics against asscts subject to finance leasc - secured 10 37,312,883
Advances from customers - unsecured 11 1,741,802,889
Deferred liabilities
- Staff vetirement benefits 12.1.1 245,194,213
- Deferred taxation 12.2 23,746,159
2,964,054,737
Current liabilities
Short tcrm borrowings - secured 13 5,259,368,808
Current portion of non-current liabilities 14 608,487,840
Trade and other payables 15 1,532,156,098
lnterest and markup accrued 16 109,673,836
7,509,686,582
Contingencies and commitments 17 -
16,203,561,700

17.041,191,134

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore
February 08, 2017
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ASSETS
Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

Current assets

Stores, spare parts and loosc tools

Stack-in-trade

Tradce debts - considered good

Advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Tax rcfunds duc from Government - net

Cash and bank balances

Nole

18
19

20
21
22
23

24

2016 2015

Rupeces Rupces
11,247,190,642 10,954,043,101
28,919,144 106,240,681
11,276,109,786 11,060,283,782
765,898,105 647,128,600
2,978,867,891 4,022,346,578
21,246,615 233,927,231
693,770,239 576,132,111
400,732,497 345,840,298
66,936,567 155,532,534
4,927,451,914 5,980,907,352
16,203,561,700 17,041,191,134

Director
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Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 30 September 2016

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
Salcs - net 25 18,675,054,125 16,520,294,399
Cost of salcs 26 (16,258,133,912)  (14,301,181,419)
Gross profit 2,416,920,213 2.219,112,980
Administrative expenses 27 (375,645,045) (355,296,763)
Distribution expenses 28 (306.350,974) (298,156,264)
QOther income 29 108.494,653 70,303,213
Profit from operations 1,843,418,847 1,635,963,166
Finance cost 30 (860,643,682)  (1,021,443,673)
Other expenses 15.2 (49,138,758) 30,725,975)
Profit before taxation 933,636,407 583,793,518
Taxation 31 (35,669,332) 7,833,179
Profit after taxation 897,967,075 591,626,697
Earnings per share - bhasic and diluted 32 7.63 5.03
The annexed notes 1 10 45 [orm an integral part of these linancial statements.
Lahore Chief Executive Director

February 08, 2017
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 September 2016

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
Profit after taxation 897,967,075 591,626,697
Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Irems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 12.1.3 (9,711,211) 6,096,992
Related rax 2,068,488 (1,304,147)
(7,642,723) 4,792,845
Total comprehensive income for the year 890,324,352 596.419.542
The annexed notes | 1o 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Lahore Chief Executive Director

February 08, 2017
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Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 30 September 2016

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupces
Cush flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 933,636,407 583,793,518
Adjustments Jor non-cash and other items:

Depreciation on properly, plant and equipment 18.2.1 569,349,231 519.819,790

(Gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment 18.2.1 (830.869) (277,713)

Finance cost 30 860,643,682 1.021.,443,673

Provision for staff retirement benefits 12.1.4 49,899,339 46,668,379

Return on bank deposits 29 (2,165,750) (7.160,318)

Provision for Worker's Profit Participation Fund 49,138,758 30,725,975

1,526,034,391 1,611,219,786
Operating profit before working capital changes 2.459,670,798 2,195,013,304
(Increase) / decrease in curvent asscts:

Stores, sparc parts and loose Lools (118,769,505) 355,176,773

Stock-in-trade 1,043,478,687 (13,981,649)

Advanccs, deposits, prepaynments and other reecivables (117,638,128) 252,896,54%

Trade debts - considered good 212,680,616 (203,670,479)

1,19,751,670 390,421,193
Decrease in cuivent liabilities:

Tradc and other payables (428.862,777) (392.361,019)
Cash generated from operations 3,050,559,691 2.193.073,478
Finance cost paid (948,408,792) (1.061,937.897)
Staff retirement benefits paid A (2,018,537) (768,967)
Taxes paid (106,515,805) (101.866,461)
Advances from customers - net 312,678,616 373.377,494
Tncrease in deposits - net 29,808,756 4,508,602
Worker's Profit Participation Ll'und paid (30.,725.975) (4,273,514)

(745,181,737) (790.960,743)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,305,377,954 1,402,112,735
Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure (843,673,724) (1,544,200,351)
Procceds [rom disposal ol property. plant and cquipment 1,060,000 375,000
Income received from bank deposits 2,165,750 7,160,318
Nect cash used in investing activities (840,447.974) (1.536,665,033)
Cush flow from financing activities
Long term finances repaid (354,427,258) (92.209,813)
Long term linances obtained 110,000,000 =
Loans from dircctors - nel (36.911.866) (153,668,098)
Finance lease liabililies - net (12,738,098) (21.740,806)
Short term borrowings - nel (1,259.537.380) 207,946,621
Net cash used in financing activities (1,553,614,602) (59.672,096)
Net deerease in cash and cash equivalents (88,684,622) (194,224,394)
Cash and cash equivalents at the heginning of the year 55,686,991 249,911,385
Cash and cash cquivalents at the ¢nd of the year 33 (32.997.631) 55.686,991

The anncxed notes 1 1o 45 [orm an inlegral part ol these [inancial statements.

Lahore

February 08, 2017

Chief Executive
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Balance as at 30 September 2014

Transactions with owners of the Company:

Repayments made during the yeur

Total comprehensive income for the year:

ProfiL {or the year ended 30 Seplember 2015
Other comprehensive income for the year
ended 30 September 2015 - net of tax

Balance as at 30 September 2015

Transactions with owners of the Company:

Repaynenis made during the year

Total comprehensive income for the

ProfiL {or the year ended 30 Seplember 2016
Other comprehensive income for the year
ended 30 Septernber 2016 - et of tax

Balance as at 30 September 2016

For the year ended 30 September 2016

Reserves
Capital REVENUE
Share Capital Jn-
. . . i ) Total reserves Loan Irom .
Share premium appropriated A Fotal
Directors
profit
------------------------------------- RuUpLes - - - - - - m o m e e e
1,177,063,000 290.741.640 840,221,677 1.130.963.317 2.125,630,134 4.4353.656.451

(153.668,098)

(153.668.09%)

391,626,697

4,792,845

591,626,697

4.792.845

591,626,697

4792845

596,419,542

596,419,542

596,419,542

1,177,063,000 290,741,640

1,436,641,219

1,727,382,359

1,971,962,036

4.876,407,895

(36.911,866)

(36,911.866)

“The annexed notes 1 1o 45 form an mtegral purt of these (mumctal stutements.

Lahore
February 08, 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 September 2016

Reporting entity

Tandliasnwala Sugar Mills Limited ("the Compuny") was incorporated in Pakistan on 01 November 1988 as a
public limited company under the Companics Ordinance, 1984, The shares of the Company arc quoted on
Pakistan Stock Lxchange. The principal activity of the Company is production and sale of white crystalline
sugar, cthanol and top gas (Carbon dioxide). The manufacturing facilitics of the Company arc located at
Kanjwani (Unit [), Dera Ismail Khan (Unit II) and Muzaffargarh (Unit 1I1). The registered office of the
Company is situated at 66 - L, Gulberg 11, Lahore.

Basis of preparation

2.1

22

2.3

Statement of compliance

Thesc financial statcments have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and thc requircments of Companics Ordinance, 1984. Approved accounting
standards comprisc of such Intcrnational Financial Rcporting Standards ("IFRSs") issucd by the
Intcrnational Accounting Standards Board and Islamic Financial Accounting Standard ("IFAS") issucd
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the provisions of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Wherever, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or
directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan differ with the requirements
of these standards, the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 or the requirements of the said
directives shall prevail.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees ("Rs."), which is the Company's tunctional and
presentation currency. All financial information has been rounded to the nearest rupee, except when
otherwise indicated.

Change in accounting policy

During the year, the Company has adopted IFRS 13 'I"air Value Measurement' which became cffective
for the financial periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015, 1'RS 13 lair Value Mcasurement'
cstablishes a single framework for measuring fair valuc and making disclosurcs about fair valuc
measurcments when such measurcments arc required or permitted by other 1IFRSs. It unifics the
definition of fair valucs as the prices that would be reccived to scll an assct or paid to transfor a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurcment date. [t replaces and
cxpands the disclosurc requircments about fair valuc mecasurcments in other IFRSs, including [FRS 7
'Financial Instruments Disclosurcs'. As a result, the Company has included the additional disclosurc in
this rcgard in notc 35 to the financial statcments. In accordance with the transitional provisions of
IFRS 13, thc Company has applicd thc new fair valuc measurcment guidance prospectively and has
adjusted corresponding information for new disclosures. The application of IFRS 13 does not have any
significant impact on the financial statements of the Company except for certain additional disclosures.
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24 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for:

- modification of [orcign currency translation adjustments,
- recognilion ol stalT retirement benefits at present value; and
- certain financial instruments at amortized cost

In these (inancial statements, cxcept for the amounts rellected in the cash [ow statement, all
transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policics and reported
amounts of asscts and liabilitics, income and cxpenses. The estimates and assoclated assumptions and
Judgments arc bascd on historical cxpericnee and various other factors that arc belicved to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying valucs of asscts
and liabilitics that arc not rcadily apparcnt from other sources. Actual results may differ from thesc cstimatcs.

The estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting cstimatcs
arc rccognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision cffects only that period, or in the
period of revision and futurc periods if the revision affects both current and futurc periods. The arcas where
various assumptions and estimates are significant to Company’s financial statements or where judgments were
exercised in application of accounting policies are:

- Stall retirement benefits note 5.1
- Taxation note 5.2
- Deferred taxation note 5.2
- Depreciation method, useful lives and residual valucs of

property, plant and equipment note 5.4
- Recoverable amount of assets / cash generating units and impairment note 5.4
- Lcasc classification note 5.5
- Storcs, sparc parts and loosc tools note 5.6
- Stock-in-trade note 5.7
- Trade debts - considered good note 5.8
- Provisions and contingencies note 5.9

New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations, that are not yet
cffective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be cffective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 October 2016. The Company either does not expect to have any
effect or any material / significant etfect on its accounting policy due to their application when become effective
other than increase in disclosures, if any.

- Amendments to TAS 38 Intangible Assets and TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016) introduce severe restrictions on the use of
revenue-based amortization for intangible assets and explicitly state that revenue-based methods of
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depreciation cannot be used lor properly, plant and equipment. The rebuilable presumption that the use
of revenue-based amortization methods for intangible assets is inappropriate can be overcome only
when revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly
correlated’; or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue. The amendments are
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statcments.

Tnvestment Tintitics: Applying the Consolidation Tixeeption (Amendments to TFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Stalements and [AS 28 — Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures) (eflective lor annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016) claritfics (a) which subsidiaries of an investment entity
are consolidated; (b) exemption to present consolidaled [inancial stalemenis is available to a parent
cntity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity; and (¢) how an entity that is not an investment entity
should apply the equity method of accounting for its investment in an associate or joint venture that is
an investment entity. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial
statcmecnts.

Accounting lor Acquisitions ofl Interests in Joint Operations — Amendments to [FRS 11 “Joint
Arrangements’ (cffcctive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016) clarify the
accounting [or the acquisition of an interest in a joinl operation where the activities of the operation
constitutc a business. They rcquire an investor to apply the principles of business combination
accounting when il acquires an interest in a joinl operation that constitutes a business. The
amendments arc not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statcments.

Amendment to IAS 27 “Separate Financial Statcmcents” (cffective for annual periods beginning on or
alter 1 January 2016) allows enlilies 10 use the equily method 1o account for investments in
subsidiarics, joint venturces and associates in their scparate financial statements. The amendment is not
likely 1o have an impact on Company’s (inancial statements.

Agriculture: Bearer Plants |[Amendment to 1AS 16 and IAS 41 (elTeclive [or annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016). Bearer plants arc now in the scopc of TAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment lor measurement and disclosure purposes. Therelore, a company can elecl o measure
bearcer plants at cost. Howcver, the produce growing on bearcr plants will continue to be mcasured at
[air value less costs to sell under 1AS 41 Agriculture. A bearer plant is a plant that: is used in the
supply of agricultural producc; is cxpected to bear produce for more than one period; and has a remote
likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce. Before maturity, bearer plants are accounted for in the
same way as sclf-constructed items of property, plant and cquipment during construction. The
amcndments arc not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statcmcnts

Amendments 1o [AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ are ellective lor annual periods beginning on or alter 1
January 2017. The amendments clarify that the existence of a deductible temporary diffcrence depends
solely on a comparison of the carrying amount ol an asset and its lax base al the end of the reporting
period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the carrying amount or cxpected manner of
recovery ol the assel. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s [inancial
statcments,

Amendments to IAS 7 *Statement of Cash Flows” are part of TASB’s broader disclosure initiative and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The amendments require
disclosures that enable users of financial stalements Lo evaluale changes in liabilities arising from
financing activitics, including both changces arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Sharc-based Payment clarify the accounting ftor certain types of
arrangements and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The
amendments cover three accounting areas (2) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b)
classification of sharc-bascd payments scttled nct of tax withholdings; and (c¢) accounting for a
modilication ol a share-based payment [rom cash-settled 1o equity-settled. The new requirements could
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allect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the (iming and
amount ol expense recognised lor new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have
an impact on Company’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 cycles (amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 81 January 2016). The new cycle of improvements contain amendments to the following standards:

[FRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. TFRS 5 is amended to clarify
that if an entity changes the method of disposal ot an asset (or disposal group) i.e. reclassifies an asset
from held for distribution to ownecrs to held for salc or vice versa without any time lag, then such
change in classification is considered as continuation of the original plan of disposal and if an entity
determines that an asset (or disposal group) no longer mects the criteria 1o be classificd as held or
distribution, then il ceases held for distribution accounting in the same way as it would cease held for
sale accounting.

[FRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments- Disclosures’. TFRS 7 is amended to clarify when servicing
arrangements on continuing involvement in transtferred financial assets in cases when they are
derccognized in their entircty are in the scope of its disclosurc requircments. [FRS 7 is also amended
to clarify that additional disclosurcs rcquired by ‘Disclosurcs: Offsctting Financial Asscts and
Financial Liabilitics (Amendments to IF'RS7) arc not specifically required for inclusion in condensed
interim [inancial statements for all interim periods.

IAS 19 *Employce Benclits’. 1AS 19 15 amended o clarily that high quality corporate bonds or
government bonds used in delermining the discount rate should be issued in the same currency in
which the benefits are to be paid.

IAS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’. IAS 34 is amended to clarify that certain disclosurcs, it they arc
not included in the notes to interim financial statements and discloscd clsewhere should be cross referred.

The improvements arc not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statcments.

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
Thesc policics have been consistently applicd to all years presented, cxcept for the change in accounting policy
as mentioned in note 2.3 to these financial statements.

5.4

Employce hencfits

() Short term employee henefit

Short-term cmployee benefits arc cxpensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the ecmployee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(b) Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for cligible ecmployees who have completed their
qualifying period. Provision is made annually to cover obligations under the scheme on the basis of
actuarial valuation and is charged Lo profit and loss account.
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Re-measurement ol the net defined benefit liability, including actuarial gains and losses arc recognized
immediately in Statement of Comprehensive ITncome ("OCIT") net of related deferred tax. The Company
determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the
discount rale used to measure the delined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to
the then-net defined benetit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
during the period as a result of contributions and bencfit payments. Net intercst cxpensc and other
expenses related 1o delined benelit plan is recognized in profit and loss account. When the benelits of
a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
scrvice or the gain or loss on curtailment is recogniscd immcediately in profit or loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses on the settlement ol a defined benefit plan when the settlement oceurs.

Taxation

Income lax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 11 is recognized in profit and loss excepl o the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it 1s
recognized in cquity.

Current tax

Provision of currcent tax is bascd on the taxable income for the ycar determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing lax
rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax
credits, rcbates and cxcmptions, it any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, (o provision for lax made in previous years arising from asscssments [ramed
during the year for such years. Under / over paid amounts of current tax are recorded as tax refundable
/ payable duc from / to thc Government.

Deferred tax

Dcferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
difTerences arising between the carrying amount of asscts and liabilitics in the linancial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
asscts arc rccognized to the cxtent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary difTerences, unused lax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Delerred tax
assets are reviewd at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
related temporary benetit will be realized.

Deferred tax is calculated atl the rates thal are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the casc
ol items credited or charged 10 equity in which case it is included in equity.

Trade and othcr payables

Liabilitics for trade and other payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in future (or goods and services received.
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Property, plant and equipment
Owned

Property, plant and equipment, excepl [reehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any identified impairment loss. Freehold land and capital work in progress are stated at cost less
any identified impairment loss. Cost includes direct cost and related overheads, interest and borrowing
cost including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting twrade discounts and
rebates and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction including expenditures on
matcrial, labour and overhcads dircetly relating to construction, crection and installation of opcrating
fixcd asscts.

Subsequent costs are included in the assel's carrying amount or recognized as a separale assel, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benelits associated with the item will Mow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Major renewals and improvements
are capitalized. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss during the period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged on a systematic basis over the useflul life of the assets, on reducing balance
method, which rellects the patterns in which the economic benelils are consumed by the Company, at
the rates specified in note 18.1.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the asset is available for use while no
depreciation is charged in the month in which the assct is disposcd off. Depreciation methods, residual
valucs and uscful lives of asscts arc revicwed at cach financial ycar cnd, and adjusted if impact on
dcpreciation is significant.

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets and cash generating units for
possible impairment. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such asscts are reviewed to
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed
the respective recoverable amount, assets are writlen down (o their recoverable amounts and the
resulting impairment loss is recognized in prolil and loss currently. The recoverable amount is the
higher ol an assel's [air value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is
recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the luture periods to allocale the assel's revised
carrying amount over its estimated uselul life.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement ol an assel represented by the difTerence between the sale
jat 1) P Yy
proceeds and the carrying amount ol the asset is recognized as an income or expense in profit and loss.

Leased

Asscts held under finance lcasc arrangements arc initially recorded at the lower of prescnt valuc of
minimum lcasc payments under the lcasc agrecements and the fair valuc of thce lecascd asscts.
Decpreciation on lcased asscts 1s charged by applying reducing balance mecthod at the rates used for
similar owned asscts, so as to depreciate the asscts over their estimated usctul lives in view of certainty
of ownership of assets at end of the lease term.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress is staled at cost less 1dentified impairment loss, il any. Cost includes the
expenditures on malterial, labour, approprate directly atiributable overheads and includes borrowing
cost in respect of qualilying assets as stated in note 5.17. These costs are translerred 10 operating [ixed
assets as and when assets are available lor their intended use.
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Leases

Leases are classified as [inance lease whenever terms of the lease transler substantially all risks and
rewards ol ownership 1o the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Finance leases are stated al amounts equal Lo the fair value or, il lower, the present value of ihe
minimum lease payments. The minimum lease payments are apportioned between the linance charge
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance cost is charged to profit and loss account.

The related rental obligations, net of finance costs, are included in labilities against assels subject to
finance lease, The liabilities are ¢lassilied as current and non-current depending upon the timing of the
paymcents,

Operating lecases / Ijarah Contracts

[cascs including [jarah financing where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor arc classiticd as operating leascs. Payments madc under opcerating lcases (nct of
any incentives received fron the lessor) are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease / Tjarah term unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the
Company’s benelit.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usablc storcs and sparc parts arc valucd principally at weighted average cost, while itcms considered
obsolete are carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other
charges paid thereon up-to the balance sheetl date. Provision is made in the (inancial slatements (or
obsolete and slow moving stores and spare parls based on management's cstimale as a resull of
changes in usage pattern and physical form.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value except for stock in
transit, which is valucd at cost comprising invoicc valuc and rclated cxpenses incurred thercon up to
the balancc shect date.

Cost is determined as follows:

Raw materials al weighted average cost

Work-in-process and [inished goods al  lower ol weighted average cost plus related
manufacturing expenscs and net realizable value

Molasses - by product at average cost of molasses purchased (rom third parties

Top gas - by product at average sclling price less further processing cost

Net realizable value signiflies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ol business less
estimated costs of complction and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make a sale. Provision is made
in the financial statcments for obsolctc and slow moving stock in trade bascd on management’s csiimale.
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Trade debts

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates [air
value, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables
18 cstablished when there 1s an objcective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all the
amount duc according to the original terms of the reccivable. Significant financial difficultics of the
dcbtors, probability that the dcbtor will enter bankruptey or financial rcorganization, and dcfault or
delinquency in payments are considered as indicators that the irade debt is impaired. The provision is
recognized in the profit and loss account. When a trade debt is uncollectible, it is written ofT against
the provision. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the protit and
loss account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past cvent and it is probable that an outflow of cconomic bencetits will be required to settle the
obligation and a rcliable estimate can be madc. Provisions arc reviewed at cach balance sheet date and
adjusted to rcefleet the current best estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost in the balance sheet. For the purpose of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise ol cash in hand and bank balances and running [inance.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

The Company classifics its financial asscts in the following catcgorics: at fair valuc through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale and held to maturity. T'he classification depends on the
purpose [or which the (inancial assels were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
{inancial assets at the time of initial recognition.

(@) Financiul assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial
asscts designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. A financial assct is
classificd as held for trading if acquired principally for the purposc of sclling in the short term. Asscts
in this category arc classificd as current asscts.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with [ixed or detertninable payments that are
not quoled in an active market.

(¢) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial asscts arc non-derivatives that arc cither designated in this catcgory or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investments within twelve months [rom the balance sheet date. When
securities classified as available-lor-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
reccognized directly in equity are included in the profit and loss account as gaing and losscs from
investment sccuritics. Tnterest on  available-for-sale sccuritics calculated using cffective interest
mcthod is recognized in the profit and loss account. Dividends on available-for-salc cquity instruments
are recognized in the profit and loss account when the Company’s right to receive payments is
established.
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(d) Held to maturity

Hcld to maturity arc tinancial asscts with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. Where
management has the intention and ability to hold these assets till maturity they are carried at amortised
coslL.

All financial asscts arc rccognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular purchascs and sales of investments arc recognized at trade date
i.c. the date on which the Company commits to purchase or scll the assct.

Financial assetls are initially recognized at [air value plus transaction costs [or all [inancial assets not
carried at fair value through profit and loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and
loss arc initially rccognized at fair valuc and transaction costs arc cxpcnscd in the protit and loss
account,

Available-tfor-salc financial asscts and financial asscts at ftair valuc through profit and loss arc
subscquently carried at fair value. ‘Loans and reccivables®™ and “held to maturity” investments arc
carried al amortized costl using ellective interest rate method. The (air values of quoted investments are
based on current prices. I the marketl [or a [inancial assel is not active (for unlisted securities), the
Company measures the investments al cost less impairment in value, il any.

Financial asscts arc derccognized when the rights to reccive cash flows trom the asscts have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
assct or group of financial asscts is impaired.

Financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities that are not financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
arc classificd as financial liabilitics at amortized cost. Financial liabilitics in this catcgory arc presented
as currcnt liabilitics cxcept for maturitics greater than twelve months from the reporting date where
these are presented as non-current liabilitics. The particular measurcment methods adopted arc
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each instrument.

Recognition and derecognition

All the financial assels and [inancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the
Company looscs control of the contractual rights that comprisc the financial asscts. Financial liabilitics
arc dcreccognized when they arc cxtinguished 1.c. when the obligation speeificd in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or cxpires. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial asscts and
(inancial liabilities is taken o profit and loss account.

Impairment
Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at cach reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired. Individually significani inancial assets are tested for impairment on an
individual basis. The remaining (inancial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar
credit risk characteristics. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates
that onc or more cvents have had a ncgative cffect on the cstimated futurc cash flows of the assct.
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An impairment loss in respect of a [inancial assel measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
dilference between ils carrying amount, and the present value ol the estimated [uture cash [lows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment loss in respect ol a (inancial assel
measured al [air value is determined by reference 1o that [air value. All impairment losses are
recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to
an cvent occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the financial assct’s carrying amount after the reversal docs not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined. nct of amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
Il any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount
ol an asset or cash generating unit is the greater ol its value in use and its [air value less cost 1o sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated luture cash lMows are discounted to their present values using a
discount rate that rellects current market assessments ol the time value ol money and the risks specilic
to the asset or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized il the carrying amount ol the assels or ils cash generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in proflit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated 10 reduce the carrying
amounts of the asscts in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are
assessed at cach reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if thore has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
reccoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount
aftcr the roversal docs not cxceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, nct of
depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Offsctting of financial assets and liabilitics

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets or settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in forcign currencics are translated to the respective functional currencies of the
Company at cxchange ratecs at the dates of the transactions. Monctary asscts and liabilitics
denominated in foreign currencics at the reporting date arc retranslated to the tunctional currcncy at
the exchange ratc at that datc. The forcign currency gain or loss on monctary items is the difference
between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for cffective
interest and payments during the year, and thc amortized cost in forcign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monctary asscts and labilitics that arc measured at fair value in a forcign currency are
retranslated to the functional currency at the oxchange rate at the date that the fair valuc was
determined. Non-monctary items that are measured bascd on historical cost in a forcign currency arc
not translated.

Forcign currency differences arising on retranslation arc generally recognized in profit and loss account.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods sold, net of
discounts and sales tax. Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benetits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue, and the
associated cost incurred, or to be incurred, can be measured reliably and there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods.

- Revenuce from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of owncership
of the goods are transferred to the buyer.

- Rcturn on deposits 18 accrued on a time proportion basis by rceference to the principal
outstanding and the applicable rale of return.

Rclated party transactions

The Company enters into transactions with related parties on an arm’s length basis except in
circumstances where, subject to approval ot the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company
to do so.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs dircctly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asscts,
which arc asscts thal nceessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use,

arc added to the cost of those assctls, until such time as the asscls arc substantially recady [or their
intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit and loss account as incurred.

Settlement date accounting

Regular way purchases and sale of financial asscts are recognized on trade date.

Dividend

Dividend to ordinary sharcholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulated profit in statement
of changes in cquity and as a hability in the Company’s financial statements in the ycar in which it is
dcclared by the Company’s sharcholders.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atiributable 10 ordinary sharcholders of the
Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting bagic EPS with wcighted average number of ordinary sharcs
that would be issued on conversion ol all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and
posi-ltax ellect of changes in profit or loss atlributable to ordinary sharcholders ol the Company that
would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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5.21 T.oan from directors
Loan from director is accounted for by using Technical Release 32 "Accounting Directors' Loan" (TR
32" issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants ol Pakitan ("ICAP"), on 25 January 2016 which
provides specitic guidance on Dircctor’s loans that arc interest frec and repayable at the discretion of
the entity. Loans are accounted lor as per clause 3.3.1 of I'R 32 which states that "A loan to an entity
by the director which is agreed to be paid at the discretion of the entity does not pass the test of
liability and is to be recorded as cquity at face value. This is not subscquently remeasured”.
5.22 Government grants
Government grants relating to export support are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that
entily will comply with the conditions atlached to it and grant will be received.
5.23 Operating profit
Opcrating profit is the result gencrated from the continuing principal revenue producing activitics of
the Company as well as other income related to operating activities. Operating profit excludes [inance
costs, other expenses and income taxes.
5.24 Segment reporting
Opcrating scgments is a componcnt of the Company that cngages in busincss activitics from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chiet’ Operating Decision maker. The Chiet Operating Decision maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segiments, has been
identified as the Board of Directors ol the Company that makes strategic decisions.
2016 2015 2016 2015
Issued, subscribed and Number Number Rupces Rupces
paid up capital
Voting ordinary sharcs of Rs. 10
cach fully paid in cash 117,706,300 117,706,300 1,177,063,000 1,177.063,000
2016 2015
Reserves Note Rupces Rupces
Sharc premium 7.1 290,741,640 290,741,640
Un-appropriated profit 2,326,965,571 1,436,641,219
2,617,707,211 1,727.382,859

7.1

This reserve can be utilized by the Company only tor the purpose specificd in section 83 (2) of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984.

Loan Irom Dircctors - unsecured

This represents interest free loans obtained from the Directors of the Company and are repayable at the
discretion of the Company.
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2016 2015
Note Rupces Rupces
9  Long term finances - secured
Mark up bearing finances firom conventional bank:
MCB Bank Limited - Led Svadicated Loan 9.1 1,091,042,757 1,227,423.091
The Bank of Punjab - Term Finance 9.2 (@) - 67,899,704
The Bank of Punjab - Term Finance 9.2(b) 96,250,000 S
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited 923 171,428,574 278,571,429
1,358,721,331 1.573,894,224
Islamic mode of [inancing:
Al Baraka Bank Limited - Diminishing Musharika 9.4 40,854,009 65,000,000
First Punjab Modaraba - Diminishing Musharika 9.5 9,698,588 14,806,962
50,552,597 79,306,962
1,409,273,928 1,653,701,186
Less:  current portion of non-current liabilities 14 493,275,335 408.785.822
915,998,593 1,244,915,364

9.1

MCB Bank Limited - Led syndicated loan

This syndicated loan has been obtained from consortium of banks comprising of MCB Bank Limited,
United Bank Limited, The Bank of Punjab, Sencri Bank Limited and Pak Libya llolding Company
(Private) Limited. The Company has obtained this syndicated loan to finance [or sctiing up the cthanol
project at Unit IT located at Muza(Targarh,

Principle repayment

Loan is repayable in 18 cqual quarterly installments with grace period of two years commencing from
I'ebruary 2014 and ending in Junc 2020.

Rate of return

The interest is payable quarterly at a rate ol three months KIBOR plus 275 bps per annum,

Security

This loan is secured by way ol pari passu charge over all the present and [uture lixed assets of Unit - T
located at Kanjwani, Unit - TT located at Dera Tsmail Khan of sugar and exclusive charge of distillery at
Unit - TIT of sugar located at Muzaffargarh respectively mn the sum of Rs. 1,667 million in favour of
security agent. This loan is also secured by way of lien and over the collection account in favour of
sccurity agent in terms of collection arrangement cntered into between company and sceurity agent and
personal guarantces of all the Dircctors of the Company.

Annual Report 2016




9.2 (a)

9.2 (b)

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Under the terms of the agreement, the Company is under restriction from lender that until the entire
amount of purchase price and all other amounts due and payable by the Company have been paid in full
to the satisfaction of lender, the Company shall not except with the prior written consent of the long term
(inance [acility - syndicalc, declare any dividend if the Company is in non-compliance with the [inancial
covenants or if the declaration and payment of such dividend will result in breach of any of the financial
covenants contained in the agreement. Directors loan to the extent of Rs 1,250 million is subordinated to
this loan.

The Bank of Punjab - Term Finance
During the year this loan has been paid in full.
The Bank of Punjab - Term Finance

This loan has been obtlained from Bank ol Punjab [or purchase ol Corporale Ollice located al 66-L,
Gulberg T, Lahore.

Principle repayment

This loan is repayable in 16 quarterly installments commencing from December 2015 and ending in
December 2019.

Rate of return
The interest is payable quarterly at a ratce of three months KIBOR plus 350 bps per annum.
Security

This loan is sccured by way ol loken registcred Mortgage ol Re. 0.1 million along with cquitable
mortgage of marked-up amount over Head Office land and building measuring 2 Kanals 16 Marlas 111
Sqft situated at 66-L, Gulberg [I, Lahore and personal guarantees of all sponsor Directors of the
Company.

Pak Oman Investment Company Limited

This loan has been obtained from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for balancing of plant and
machinery for Unit III located at Muzaffargarh.

Principle repayment

This loan is repayable in 14 quarterly installments with grace period of six months commencing from
September 2014 and ending in September 2018.
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Rate of return

The interest is payable quarterly at a rate of six months KIBOR plus 300 bps per annum.

Securily

This loan is secured by way ol 1si pari passu charge over lixed assets including land, building, plant and
machinerylocated at Unit III, with 25% margin over the facility amountand personal guarantee of all
Directors of the Company.

Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited - Diminishing Musharika

This loan was obtained from Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited underthe musharikaagreementio acquire
steam turbine generator located at Unit ITI Muzaffargarh.

Principle repayment

This loan is repayable in 12 quarterly installments commencing from November 2015 and ending in
Ticbruary 2018.

Ratc of return

The interest is payable quarterly at a rate of $ix months KIBOR plus 300 bps per annum.

Sceurily

This loan is secured by way of pari passu charge of Rs. 100 million over all [ixed and moveable assels
including land, building and machinery of Unit III, located at Muzaffargarh. This loan is also secured by
personal guarantee of all the Directors of the Company.

FRirst Punjab Modaraba - Diminishing Musharika

This loan was obtained from First Punjab Modaraba under the diminishing musharika agreement to
acquirc thirtcen vehicles of brands namcly Toyota, Ilonda and Tractors.

Principle repayment

This loan is repayable in 36 monthlyinstallmentscommencinglrom January2015 and endingin February
2018.

Rate ol return
The interest is payable monthly at a rate of six months KIBOR plus 400 bps per annum.
Security

Vehicles are registered in the name of I'irst Punjab Modaraba as security . This is also secured by
personal guarantcee of all the Dircctors of the Company.

Due installments were paid during the year except for the installmentisdue on 30 September 2016 that
were paid subsequent to the year end.
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Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - secured

The liability against assels subject to [inance lease represents the lease entered into with financial institutions.

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
Present value of minumum lease payments 152,525,388 186.210.542
Less: current portion of non-current liabilitics 14 (115,212,505) (41,453,496)
37,312,883 144,757,046

The amount of [uture minimum lease payments along with their present value and the periods during which they will
fall duc arc:

2016
Minimum Fulure
Present
lease finance
value
payments cost
Particulars Note ceemmmemmmmeeaaaaa Rupees - ---------------
Not later than onc year 14 120,341,131 5,128,626 115,212,505
Later than onc year and not later
than five years 40,692,000 3,379.117 37,312,883
161,033,131 8,507,743 152,525,388
2015
Minimum Future
Present
leasc finance
valuc
payments cost
Particulars e eemaammaaa o Rupceg-=-mmmmmccccaaan
Not Jater than onc ycar 14 47,477,101 6,023,605 41,453,496
Later than one year and not later
than five years 147,339,883 2,582,837 144,757,046
229,673,701 18,628,353 186,210,542
Salient features of the leases are as follows: 2016 2015
Discouni faclor (%) 10.06 - 12.07 11.04 - 15.69
Term of lease (years) 3-5 3-5
Sccurity deposits (%) 10 10
10.1 The Company has entered into various lcase agreements with financial institutions for plant and machincry and

vehicles. Lease rentals are paydble on monthly basis. All lease agreements carry renewal option at the end of
lease period, however, the Company iniends 1o exercise ils oplion 1o purchase the leased assels upon
completion of the respective lease terms. All leases are secured against personal guarantees of Directors, Chief
Cxecutive Officer and different amount of post dated cheque. Residual value of the leased assets has already
been paid al the inception of the lease in the lorm ol security deposits, There are no linancial restctions
imposed by lessors. ‘l'axes, repairs. replacements and insurance costs arc borne by the lessec.

Advances from customers - unsecured

These represent interest free advanees received against sale of sugar from 2017 - 2018 production.

2016 2015
Deferred liabilities Note Rupees Rupees
StalT retiremenl benelits - Gratuity 12.1.1 245,194,213 187,602,200
Dcferred taxation 12.2 23,746,159 41,768,921
268,940,372 229,371,121
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

12.1 StalTl retirement benclits - Gratuity 2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
12.1.1 Amount recognized in balance sheet is
as [ollows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 12.1.2 245,194,213 187,602,200
Liability as at 30 Septcmber 245,194,213 187.602,200
12.1.2 Movement in liability for defined
bencfit obligation
Present value ol delined benelit
obligation as at 01 October 187,602,200 147,799,780
Current service cost for the year 12.1.4 33,798,389 26,776.764
Interest cost for the year 12.1.4 16,100,950 19,891,615
Benefits paid during the year (2,018,537) (768,967)
Actuarial loss / (gain) on present value ol
delined benelit obligation 12.1.3 9,711,211 (6,096,992)
Present value of defined benefit obligation
as at 30 Scptember 245,194,213 187,602,200
12.1.3 Changes in actuarial gains
Opening acturial gain - -
Actuarial (loss) / gain during the year 9,711,211) 6,096,992
Charge Lo other comprehensive income 9,711,211 (6,096,992)
Unrecognized actuarial gains - -
12.1.4 Charge for the year
In profit and loss account
Current service cost 33,798,389 26,776,764
Interest cost 16,100,950 19,891,615
Net amount chargeable to profit and loss account 49,899,339 46,668,379
In other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss / (gain) on defined benefit obligation 9,711,211 (6.096.992)
59,610,550 40,571,387
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Historical Information
Present value of defined
benefit obligations 245,194,213 187,602,200 147,729,780 114,176,546 84,072,072
Expericuce adjustment
arising on plan liability
losses / (gains) 9,711,211 (6,096,992) 1,148,513 6,673,637 (7,642,643)
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12.1.5

12.1.6

12.1.7

12.1.8

12.1.9

12.1.10

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Assumptions used for valuation of defined benefit schemes

2016 2015
Discount ratc uscd for intcrest cost 9.25% 13.50%
Discount rate used for year ended obligation 7.25% 9.25%
Expected rates of salary increasce
in future 6.25% 8.25%

Expected mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005  SLIC 2001-2005

Setback 1 Ycear Setback 1 Year
Withdrawal Rates Age-Based Age-Based

(per appendix) (per appendix)
Reliremenl age 60 ycars 60 years

Expected expensc for next year

The cxpected cxpensc to the gratuity scheme for the year ending 30 Scptember 2017 works out to Rs. 49.25
million.

The Plan cxposcs the Company to the actuarial risks such as:
Salary risks

The risk thal the [inal salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the
benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors).
the benefit amount incrcascs as salary incrcascs.

Mortality / withdrawal risks

The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences is ditferent. The ctfect depends upon beneficiaries'
service / age distribution and the entitled benelits of the beneliciary.

Gratuity scheme entitles the members to gratuity on resignation, termination, retirement, carly retirement,
retrenchment, death and dismissal based on the Company's Service rules. Gratuity is based on the last month
basic salary for each year of service.

The average duration of the defined bencfit obligation is 7 Ycars.

Sensitivity analysis

If the significant actuarial assumptions uscd to cstumnatc the defined benefit obligation at the rcporting date,
had fluctuated by 100 bps with all other variables held constant, the impact on present value of the defined
beneliL obligation as at 30 September 2016 would have been as follows:

Gratuity

Impact on present value of defined
benetit obligation
Increase 100 bps  Decrease 100 bps
——————————— Rupees - - ---------

Discount ratc movement 230,667,067 262,152,639
Future salary movement 262,430,089 230,162,939
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2016 2015
12.2 Deferred taxation Rupees Rupees
Delerred tax lability on taxable temporary
differences arising in respect of:
- Accelerated (ax depreciaiion 1,216,874,780 1.222.763,867
- Leased ussels - nel 43,729,522 38,174,327
Deferred tax asset on deduetible temporary
differences arising in respect of:
- Unused tax losses and tax credits (1,174,165,221) (1,179,041,162)
- Staff retirement benefits (52,226.367) (40,128.111)
- Provision for Worker's Profit Participation Fund (10,466,555) -
23,746,159 41,768,921
12.2.1 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
As at 01 October 41,768,921 48,297,933
Recognized in profit and loss account:
- Accclerated tax depreciation on opcerating fixed asscts (5,889,087) 315,110,028
- Leased asscts - net 5,555,195 7,463,432
- Unused tax losses and lax credils 4,875,941 (382,181,608)
- StalT retirement benelits (10,029,768) (7,209,591)
- T'ax ratc adjustment S 61,592 914
- Provision for Worker's Profit Participation l'und (10,466,555) 5
(15,954,274) (5,224.885)
Recognized in other comprehensive income:
- Staff retirement benefits (2,068,488) (1,304,147
23,746,159 41,768,921
12.2.2  As al 30 Seplember 2016 delerred tax assel amounting 1o Rs. 1.084.71 million (2015: Rs. 991.50 million) on

unused tax losses has not been recognized in these financial statements as sufficient taxable profits are not
cxpected to be available against which the Company can usc bencfits therefrom. Management is of the view
that recognition of deferred tax asset shall be re-assessed on 30 September 2017. Business tax losses
amounting to Rs. 1,171.61 million, Rs. 918.82 million, Rs. 588.88 million and Rs. 584.89 million will expirc

in tax year 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively.

Short ierm borrowings - secured

Interest rate 2016 2015
Banking & Financial Institutions % Rupees Rupees
Mark-up based borrowings from
convenlionol hanks:
Cash finance 8.31 2,672.,776,610 3.614,771,990
Running finance 9.45-9.82 99,934,198 99,845,543
Export refinance 3.00-4.50 2,386,658,000 2.554,200,000
5,159,368.808 6.268,817,533
Islamic mode of financing:
Morahaba finance 9.37 - 10.12 100,000,000 250,000,000
5,259,368,808 6,518,817,533

The Company has availed short term borrowing facilities [rom various commercial banks under mark-up arrangements
having aggregale sanclioned limits of Rs. 11,725 million (2015: Rs. 9,775 million). These [acilities are secured against
different sceuritics including pledge of stock-in-trade, lien on debtors, charge over the present and future current and
fixed asscts, licn on cxports documents and personal guarantces of the sponsoring Dircctors. The pledge based
outstanding horrowings out of the above outstanding borrowings arc sccured against pledge of stock-in-tradec amounting

to Rs. 3,515 million (2015: Rs 4,963 million).
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Current portion of non-current liabilities

Long term finances - secured
Liabilities against assets subject to
finance lcasc - secured

Trade and other payables

Trade and other creditors

Creditors for capital expenditurce

Advances from customers

Retention money payable

Federal Fxcise Duty and Sales Tax payable
Income tax deducted at source

Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Unclaimed dividend

Accrued liabilities

Other liabilities

15.1  This includes Rs. 158.13 million received Irom Trading Corporation ol Pakistan ("TCP") against sale
ol sugar. In the year 2009 the Food Direclorate of the Government, in conjunction with the law

Nole

10

15.1

15.3

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
493,275,335 408,785,822

115,212,505 41,453,496
608,487,840 450,239,318
483,270,739 376,202,688
439,672.443 613,827,792
268,937,635 623,990,601

15,504.795 30,295,078

76,636,620 76,836,687

6,863,043 16,499,251

49,138,758 30,725,975

5,077,781 5,077,781

60,281,718 56,155,752
126,772,566 112,994,487

1,532,156,098 1,942.606,092

enlorcement agencies lilted and sold TCP sugar stocks, despite protest [rom the Company.

This lifting of the sugar stocks by Government constituted an ¢vent of force majeure under clause 12
of terms of lenders and the tenders would, therefore, be discharged due o [rusiration of the contracl.

Accordingly the management, based on the legal opinion, is of the view that the Company afler the
cvent of force majeure 1s not required to make delivery of sugar to TCP and no penaltics or incidental
charges will arisc on non performance of the contract. Turther, the Company agreed to scttle the
remaining amount to TCP subject to reconciliation of quantity forcibly lifted by TCP which to-date is

pending,

15.2  Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Opcning balance
Expense for the year
Payments made during the year

153  This mainly includes payable to insurance companies amounting to Rs. 47.34 million (2015: Rs. 32.25
million) as per terms of the respective insurance contract.
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2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
30,725,975 4,273,514
49,138,758 30,725,975
(30,725,975) (4,.273.514)
49,138,758 30,725,975
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Interest and markup accrued
Mark-up on borrowings firom conventional banks:
Long term loans - secured 26,916,284 40,166,418
Short term borrowings - secured 81,043,279 164,503,659
107,959,563 204,670,077
Profit on islamic mode of financing:
Short term borrowings - secured 1,714,273 282,415
109,673,836 204,952,492

Contingencies and commitments

17.1

17.2

Contingencies

() The Government of Punjab under the powers conterred through the Punjab Excise Act, 1914
through notification No. SO. Tax (L&) 3-4/2012 dated 3rd July 2013, levied a charge of Rs.
2 per liter on manufacturing of spirit (ethanol). The management through its legal council is of
the view that imposition of said levy has placed the distilleries in the Punjab province in a
disadvantageous position as compared to other provinces and accordingly tiled a writ petition
no 18347/2012 against the above levy in the Lahore ITigh Court. The ITonorable Lahore 1ligh
Court, through such petition, has granted an interim relief in favour of the Company and
accordingly no provision has been incorporated in the financial statements.

Commitments

(i) Thc Company has capital commitments of Rs. 202.16 million (2015: Rs. 32.38 million) on
account ol import o'machinery and its related components.

(i) The Company has given a bank guarantee with 100% cash margin of Rs. 2 million (2015: Rs.
2 million) to the Excise and Taxation Department for the expert of cthanol in rclation to
contingency as discussed in note 17.1 (i1).

(iii) Thc amount of futurc ljarah rentals for ljarah financing and the period in which thesc
payments will become due are as [ollows:

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Not later than one year 1,785,629 10,145,715
Later than one year and not later than five years - 1,709,496
1,785,629 11,855,211

‘The Company has cntered into ljarah lcase agreements with Al-Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited for
vehicles. [jarah rentals are payable on monthly basis. The vehicles shall be returned to the lessor at the
cnd of the [jarah leasc term. During the Ijarah lcase term all righis, title and exclusive ownership ol the
vehicles shall at all times remain vested in the lessor. Taxes, repairs, replacements and insurance costs
arc borne by the lessce.
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18.3

18.3.2
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»

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Capital work in progress
Owned
Civil works 68,373,989 12,142,315
Advancces 41,303,733 -
Plant and machinery 435,780,360 279,738
Electric equipment 13,056,650 -
Other 2,078,000 -
560,592,732 12,422,053
Movement is as follows:
Opcning balance as at 01 Oclober 12,422,053 1,861,447.8779
Additions made during the year:
Advances 41,303,733 =
Civil works 87,538,946 145,687,576
Plant and machincry 435,500,622 282,120,091
Llectric equipment 13,056,650 510,984
Other 2,078.000 45,725,437
579,477,951 474,044,088
Capitalized during the year:
Civil works (31,307.272) (577,037.293)
Plant and machincry - (1,510,685,834)
Electric equipment - (2,398.501)
Other - (232,948.,286)
(31,307,272) (2,323,069.914)
Closing balance as at 30 September 560,592,732 12,422,053

Additions to capital work in progress also include borrowing costs of Rs. Nil (2015: Rs. 39.97 million)
relating to specific borrowings for sctting up a Distillery Unit I located at Muzaffargarh at the rates
ranging [rom Nil (2015: 9.34% to 12.92% per annum)

This mainly rclates to the on going project of plant cfficiency and capacity cnhancement at all three
units (Unit I, Unit IT, Unit III) of the Company.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupcces
Long term deposits
Deposits against lcased asscts 19.1 10,645,969 80,084,950
Others 18,273,175 26,1 55.731
28,919,144 106,240,681
19.1 All these deposits are adjustable against the last installment of lease rental.
2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stores and spare parts 746,032,106 630,287.294
0il and lubricants 19,865,999 16,841,306
765,898,105 647,128,600
Stock-in-trade
Raw material:
Molasses 44,358,779 2,530,249
44,358,779 2,530,249
Finished goods:
Sugar 2,402,486,102 3,868,946,102
L:thanol 529,022,749 150,658,505
Top Gas 3,000,261 211,722
2,934,509,112 4,019,816,329
2,978,867,891 4,022,346,578
Trade debts - considered good
Lixport - secured 22,1 - 222,662,152
Local - unsecured, considered good 222 21,246,615 11,265,079
21,246,615 233,927,231

22.1 These were sceurcd through banks by Ictters of credit.

22.2 These include amount due from Riaz Bottlers (Pvt.) Limited, an associated company against top gas
amounting to Rs. 19.99 million (2015: Rs. 8.81 million) in the normal course of busincss and 1s over
due by less than 180 days.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupces

Advances, deposits, prepayments and

other receivables
Advances 1o sugar cane growers -

unsecured, considered good 12,838,435 6,202,576
Advances to supplicrs and contractors -

unsecured, considered good 23.1 84,177,916 198,213,713
Advances to staff - unsecured, considered good

- against expenses 10,008,204 14,331,045

- agalnst salarics 232 15,321,223 12,313,927
Tease and other deposits 100,192,557 47.477,101
Advancces against Letter of Credits - secured 19,656,639 49,388,630
Prepayments 10,345,632 9.609,603
Inland export subsidy 233 133,187,750 133,187,750
Export support on sugar 23.4 303,513,050 63,498,050
Other receivables 4,528,833 41,909,666

693,770,239 576,132,111

"This represents unsceured interest free advances o contraclors and suppliers for normal repair and

This includes amount reecivable from Mr. Aftab Ali Khan and Mr. Muhammad Irfan Javed,
executives of the Company amounting 10 Rs. 11.31 million and Rs. 2.49 million (2015: Rs. 12.31

This represents inland export subsidy provided to exporters of sugar in the year 2013 and 2014 at the
rate of Rs. 1.75 and Rs. 1 per kg of sugar exported through SRO 7(2)/2012-E-111 (Vol-1V) dated 30

23.1

maintenance.
23.2

million) respectively.
23.3

September 2013,
234

This represents export support on sugar provided to exporters with inland freight support of Rs. 3 per
kg (2015: Rs. 2 per kg) and export support ol Rs. 10 per kg (2015: Rs. 8 per kg) pursuant to Exchange
Policy Department Circular Letter no. 20 of 2015 by State Bank ol Pakistan under directions ol
Government of Pakistan dated 28 Decemeber 2015.

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupces
Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand 1,594,603 2,802,915
Cash at bank
- currenl accounls 55,363,532 96,154,587
- Saving accounts 24.1 9,978,432 56,575,032
65,341,964 152,729,619
66,936,567 155,532,534

24.1 These carry mark up at the rates ranging from 3.00% to 4.50% per annum (2015: 7.00% to 8.75% per

annum).
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Sales - net

Locul:
Sugar
Lthanol
Top Gas
Fusel Oil

Export:
Sugar
Ethanol

Less:  Sales tax
Federal Excise Duty

Note

25.1

2016 2015
Rupcees Rupees
14,792.006,172 12,475,668,758
129,208,940 109,740,350
291,426,481 163,554,680
731,000 S
15,213,372,593 12,7748,963,794
1,883,815,258 1,465.112,9558
2,790,026,602 3,268,206,451
4,673,841,860 4,733,319,409
19,887,214,453 17,482,283.203
61,316,931 39,709,512
1,150,843,397 922,279,292
1,212,160,328 961,988,804
18,675,054.125 16,520,294,399

25.1 This also includes export support amounting to Rs. 330 million (2015: 218.08 million) as discloscd in
note 23.4 to these financial statements.

Cost of sales

Raw material consumed
Salarics, wages and other benefits

Depreciation

Stores and spare parts consumed

Fuel and power

Repair and maintenance
Vehicle running expenses

Insurance
Other expenses

Add: Opening stock

- raw matcrial

- finished goods

Less: Closing stock

- raw malerial

- finished goods

26.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 34.67 million (2015: Rs. 29.13 million) in respect of staff
retircment benefits.

Note

26.1
18.2.1

Annual Report 2016

2016
Rupeces

13,442,643.213
447,108,335
545,457,463
371,947,944
107.463,868
229,839,133
15,709,484
40,031,196
14,454,589

2015
Rupees

12,565.855,745
385.997 285
499,928,579
404,549,819
121,830,771
266,641,237
15,532,722
38,967,017
15,859,893

15,214,655,225

14,315,163,068

2,530,249 202.856,671
4,019,816,329 3,805.508.258
19,237,001.803  18,323.527.997
(44,358,779) (2.530,249)
(2,934,509,112)  (4,019,816,329)
16,258,133,912  14,301,181.419
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2015
Rupces

177,780,051
9,688.483
19,891,211
14,029,707
2,375,411
7,437,432
2,175.432
5,357,086
6,280,894
45,690,262
4,683,790
5,419,704
5,481,203
2,426,640
12,702,796
12,362,612
21,505,029

2016
Nore Rupcces

Administrative expenses
Salaries and other benelils 27.1 218,376,368
Rent, rates and taxes 6,854,908
Depreciation 18.2.1 23,891,768
Donation -
Liilitics expenses 2,854,555
Printing and stationery 7,664,940
Insurance 2,482,421
Postage, telephone and telegrams 7,016,966
Repair and maintenance 5,301,817
Travelling and conveyance 45,389,040
Subscription, books and periodicals 3,596,750
l.cgal and profcssional charges 6,459,160
Advances written ofT -
Auditors' remuneration 27.2 2,662,000
Enlertainment 13,291,362
Tjarah lcasc rentals 8,145,489
Other expenses 21,657,501

375,645,045

355,296,763

27.1 Salaries, wages and other benelils include Rs. 15.23 million (2015: Rs. 17.54 million) in respect ol stall

retirement benefit.

2016 2015
Nule Rupces Rupces
27.2 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 1,925,000 1,750,000
TTalf yearly review 495,000 450,000
Out of pocket expenses 242,000 226,640
2,662,000 2,426,640
Distribution expenses
ITandling and distribution 92,522,547 94,577,660
‘I'ransportation 167,008,509 153,798,718
Others 46,759,918 49,779,886
306,350,974 298,156,264
Other income
Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts 2,165,750 7,160,318
Income from non-financial assets
Profit on disposal of property, plant and cquipment 18.2.1 830,869 277,713
Foreign exchange gain 60,478,172 8,316,382
Export support 234 99,019,862 54,548,800
108,494,653 70,303,213
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2016 2015
Finance cost Note Rupees Rupees
Murk-up based loans from conventional bunks
- Long term loans - secured 142,449,635 187,038,154
- Short term borrowings - secured 652,732,348 793,350,388
- Finance lcases - secured 7,513,546 9,861,753
802,695,529 990,250,295
Islamic made of financing
- Long term finances - secured 6,466,489 4,592,451
- Short term borrowings - secured 31,648,661 36,640,366
38,115,150 41,232,817
Bank chargcs 2,343,185 7,034,387
Other charges 17,489,818 22,897,792
19,833,003 29,932,179
Less: Borrowing costs capitalized 18.3.2 - (39,971.618)
860,643,682 1,021.,443,673
Taxation
Income tax
- current 31.2&31.3 51,623,606 -
Dcferred tax 31.4 (15,954,274) (7,833,179)
35,669,332 (7,833,179)
311 ‘Tax Charge Reconciliation 2016 2015
Yo Y%
Numerical reconciliation between tax cxpense
and accounting profit
Applicable tax rate as per Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 31% 32%
Tax credit -14.47% -28.25%
Effect of minimum tax 12.65% 57.78%
Effect of final tax regime -23.65% -61.53%
Effect of temporary differences 1% 1.34%
-27.18% -33.34%
Averagoe cffective tax rate charged to profit and loss account 3.82% -1.34%

31.2 In view of available tax losses, the provision for current tax represents tax under 'Final Tax Regime'
(FTR) and tax on minimum turnover w/s 113, of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Tax charge (normal and
[inal) for current year amounting to Rs. 186.75 million has been adjusted against the tax credit of Rs.
135.13 mullion related to balancing, modernisation and replacement of plant and machinery already
installed, as available ws 65B of the Income Tax Ordinancc, 2001, Minimum tax is available for sct off
for five years against normal tax liabilitics arising in tuturc ycars.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

315

31.6

Tax under 'Final Tax Regime' represents tax on export of sugar and cthanol and is treated as a full and
final discharge u/s 154 of [ncome Tax Ordinance, 2001. Current tax included tax under FTR amounting
10 Rs. 46.74 million (2015: Rs. 45.24 million).

The Finance Act, 2015 introduccd a ncw tax under Scction SA of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 on
every public company other than a scheduled bank or modaraba, that derives profits for tax year and
does not distribute cash dividend within six months of the end of said tax year or distribute dividends to
such an ¢xtent that its reserves, afier such distribution, are in excess of 100% of its paid-up capital.
However, this tax on undistributed reserves is not applicable to a public company which distributes
profit cqual to cither 40 percent of its after tax profits or 50% of its paid up capital, whichever is less,
within six months of the end of the tax year.

Tax on undistributed rescrves amounting to Rs. 115 million has been adjusted against the credits of
minimum tax available lor set ofT agaisnt this tax liabilily.

The liability for deferred taxation comprise of timing differences relating to accelerated tax depreciation,
leased assets, retirement benefits, provision for Worker's Profit Participation Fund and unuscd tax losses
and tax credits as mentioned in note 12.2.

Super tax under section 4(2) of the Tncome Tax Ordinance, 2001 is not applicable to the Company as the
imputable income docs not mect the threshold of Rs. 500 million.

Certain other tax cascs not involving material amounts are pending against the Company against which
the Company expects {avourable oulcomes.

Earnings per share

321

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 2016 2015

Profit after taxation Rupees 897,967,075 591,626,697
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — No. of shares 117,706,300 117,706,300
Basic earnings per share Rupees 7.63 5.03

Diluled earnings per share

There is no dilution cffect on the basic carnings per sharc as the Company docs not have any convertible
instruments in issue as at 30 September 2016,

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and bank balances 24 66,936,567 155.532,534
Running tinance 13 (99,934,198) (99,845,543)
(32,997,631) 55,686,991
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Capacity and production

Sugar plant

Scason started on
Season closed on
Working Days

Crushing capacity (Metric tons)

based on 125 days

Sugar canc crushed (Metrie tons)
Sugar produced (Mctric tons)

Recovery ratio

2016

Unit 1

13 March '16
108
812,500

587.336
50,392
8.58%

Unit [1

1 April '16
109
1,500,000

850,065
76,474
9.01%

Lnit 111

27 November '15 15 December '15 27 November '15

20 March '16
115
1,687,500

1,190,695
120,512
10.12%

‘l'otal

27 November '15
1 April '16

126

4,000,000

2,628,096
247,378
9.42%,

Under utilization of capacity 1s due to the tact that during the season there was shortage of sugarcane.

Sugar plant

Scason started on
Season closed on
Working Days

Crushing capacity (Mctric tons)

bascd on 125 days

Sugar cane crushed (Melric lons)
Sugar produced (Metric tons)

Recovery ratio

FEthanol - Distillery plant I

2015

Scason started on
Season closed on
Working Days

Rated capacity (Litrcs)
bascd on 300 days
Actual production (Litres)

Lthanol - Distillery plant 11

Season started on
Scason closed on
Working Days

Rated capacity (Lilers)
based on 300/ 270 days*
Actual production (Liters)

Unit 1

25 November '14
15 March '15
111
812,500

505,953
45,488
8.99%

Unit 11

04 Dceember '14
11 April'15

129

1,500,000

1,030,447
95,011
9.22%

Unit 111

28 November '14
28 March '15
121

1,647,500

1.214,159
124,611
10.26%

2016

15 December 15
27 September 16
287

37,500,000
28,039,715

11 December 15
30 September 16
294

39,000,000
35,314,786

Total

25 November '14
L1 April'L5

139

4.000.000

2.750,559
265,110
9.64%

2015

01 October 14
30 September 15
318

37,500,000
33.076,087

01 December 14
30 Scptember 15
270

35.100,000
31,811,749

*Digtillery I Tocated at MuralTargarh became operational during the month of December 2015 and was available
lor use for nine months in comparative year, whereas in the current year Distillery Il was available (or use lor

twelve months.

Top Gas - Carbon dioxide plant

Seuason slarted on
Scason closced on
Working Days

Rated capacity (Metric tons)
based on 300 days
Actual production (Metric tons)
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18 December 15
26 September 16

283

14,400
9,094

01 Octlober 14
30 Scptember 15
318

14.400
6,337
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

35 Fuir value cnent of fi il instr

Tair value is the price (hut would be received w sell an assec or paid 1o transler o Hability inan orderly transaction betweren markel participants at the measwement dute.

Underlying the delinition ol Gair value is the preswaption that the Company is 4 going concern and there is uo intention vr requirenient to curtail materially the scale ol it operations
or Lo undertake a lransaction on adverse Llermis,

A Tinancial insteument. is regarded as quoted in an active markel iT quatal price is readily and regulacly available from an exchange dealer, broker, indusicy graup, pricing service, or
regulatary ageney, and thal price represents actual and regularly ovcurring markal leansactions an an arm's lenglh basig.

LFRS 13 Fair Value Measurciacnt' requires the Compary to classity fair value measurcmcnts using a fair valuc hicrarchy that refleets the signiticancc of the jnputs used m making the
measurcments. The tair value hicrarchy has the following levels:

- Quated prices (unadjusied) in active markets Jor identical assets or liabilities that entity can access al measurement date (Level 1)
- lnputs ether than quorcd prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assct or liabiliry, cither direetly (L.e. as prices) or indircerly (i.¢. derived from prices) (level 2)
- Lnputs for the assct or liability that arc nor based on obscrvable market data (i.c. unabscrvable) inputs (Level 3)

Transler between levels ol the Jair value higrarchy are recognised au the end ol the reporting period during which the changes have occurred.

The tollowing table shows the canying amounts and fair valucs ot financial asscis and tinancial liabilitics. including their levels in the tair value hierarchy

Kair value

Other finan

liabilities at Total Level 1 Level2 Level 3 ‘I'otal
/s amartized cost

As at 20 September 2016 e e e Rupets - - - oo oo
Financial assets - measured af fair value
Financial assets - not measured al fair value
lang term deposits 18,273,175 o 18,273,175
Trade debls - convidered good 21,246,615 - 21,246,615
Advances, deposils, prepayments and
other receivables 4,528,833 - 4,528,833 - - - -
Clush und bank balances 66,936.567 - 66,936,567 - - - -

110,985,190 R 110,985,190 = E E -
Financial liabililies - measured al fair value - - - - - - -
Financial liabilities - nor measured at fair value
Long term lnances - secured - 915,998,593 915,998,593 = S S =
Liabililics againsl asscls subjeel w linance lease - secured - 37,312,883 37,312,883 - - - -
Shott term borrowings - secured - 5,259,368,808 5,259,.368,808 = = = =
Current portion of non-current liabilities - 608,487,840 608,487,840 - - - -
Trade and other payablos - 675,402,804 675,402,804 - - - -
Interest and markup acerued - 109,673,836 109,673,836 - - - -

= 7,606,244,764____ 7,606,244,764 B B . .

Financial assets  preasured at fair value

Finemeial assets  nor meassred ar fair valie

Long term deposirs 26,155,731 - 20,158,731

Trade debis - convidered gonod 233,927,231 - 233,927,231 - - - -

Advances, deposils, prepayments and

other reecivables 41,909.666 - 41,909,666 - - - -

Cash und bank balances 155,532,534 - 155,532,524 - - - -
457,525,162 - 457,525,162 - - - -

Financial liabilitics - measured al fair value

Financial liabilities ot measured at fair value

Long term linances - secured - 1,241,915.301 1.211,915,361 o o o O
Tiabilifics agains( asscls subjeet Lo finance lease - secured - 144,757,046 144,757,046 - - s S
Short term borrowings - secured - 6,518,817,533 6,518,817,533 - - - -
Current portion of non-current liabilities - 450,239,318 450,239,318 - - - -
Trade and other payables - 550,436,708 550,430,708 - - - -
lnterest and markup accrued - 204,952,492 204,952,492 - - - -

= 5,114, 112461 914,112,161 = B B =

3S.1 Fair value versus carrying amounts
“The Company has not discloscd the fair values of these finaneial assets and liabilitics as these are for shoit term or repriced over shout termn. “Uheretore, their carnrying amounts
are reasonable approximation of tair valuc.
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Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credil risk
Market risk
Liguidity risk

This notc presents inlornmation about the Company’s cxposure to cach of the above risks, the Company’s objeciives, policics and processcs
[or measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management ol capital.

36.1

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishment and over-sight of the Company's risk management framewaork.
The exccutive management tcam is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies, The team
regularly meets and any changes and compliance issues arc reported to the Board of Directors through the Audit Comumittee.

The Company’s nisk management policics arc established (o 1dentily and analyzc the risks [aced by the Company, Lo scl appropale
nsk limits and controls, and 1o monitor risks and adherence o hmits, Risk management policics and sysiems are reviewed regularly
Lo reflect changes in markel conditions and the Company's aclivilies. The Company, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

‘T'he Company's Audit Commillee oversees how management monilors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies
and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. Audit
committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular and ad hoc
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Credit risk

Credit nisk 18 the nisk of [inaneial loss 10 the Company 11 a custorner or counterparly o a [inancial mstrument [ails 1o mect s
conlractual obligations, and arises principally [rom the Company’s receivables [rom customers and other parties. Oul of the Lotal
financial assets of Rs. 110.98 million (2015: Rs. 457.52 million) financial assets which are subject to credit risk amount to Rs.
109.39 million (20152 Rs. 454.72 million).

The Company’s exposure Lo credil risk is inlluenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. To manage exposure
to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management reviews credit worthiness, references, establish purchase limits taking into
account the customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors. Export sales are secured through letters of credit. ‘The

management has set a policy of making sales to customers on prepayment basis.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar
economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the changes in economic,
political or other conditions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Expasure to credit visk

The carrymg amount of financial asscls represents the maximuimn credil exposure belore any credit cnhancements. The maximum
exposure o eredit risk at the reporting dale 1s:

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
Long ferm deposils 19 18,273,175 26,155.731
‘I'rade debts - considered good 22 21,246,615 233,927,231
Advances, deposits and other reccivable 4,528,833 41,909,666
Bunk balances 24 65,341,964 152,729,619
109,390,587 454,722.247
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Trade dehbis

‘I'rade deblor at the balance sheet date are classificd in Pak Rupecs.

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Export - secuied - 222,662,152
T.ocal - unsccured, considered good 21,246,015 11,265,079
21,246,615 233,927,231
The aging of trade reccivables at the reporting date is:
Related Parties Others Tulal
206 2016 2016
Rupcees Rupces Rupeces
1 to 30 days 13,740,975 1,248,476 14,989,451
3010 90 duys 6,257,164 - 6,257,164
19,998,139 1,248,476 21,246,615
Related Parties Qthers Total
2015 2015 2015
Rupees Rupees Rupeces
L to 30 days 8,812,066 222,662,152 231,474,218
3010 90 days - 2,543,013 2,543,013
8.812.066 225.205,165 234,017,231

Based on past experience the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect ot trade debts as some
receivables have been recovered subsequent to the year end and there are reasonable grounds to believe that the amounts will be
recovered in short course ot time as they are mainly due from Government.

Bank balances

Credit risk is considered minimal since the counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various credit rating
agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterpartics and considering their strong financial standing,
management does not expect non-performance by these counterpartics on their obligations to the Company. Following arc the credit
ratings of counterparties with cxternal credit ratings:

Rating Rating 2016 2015
Shorl term Long (erm Agency Rupees Rupees

Al-Baraka Islamic Bank Al A PACRA 177,495 451,706
Allied Bank Timited Al- AA- PACRA 3,864,801 2,996,238
Bank Alfalah Limited Al AA PACRA 1,899,873 10.602.193
The Bank of Punjab Al- AA PACRA 14,570,327 622916
Barclays Bank PLC A2 A- S&P - -
Burj Bank A-1 A JCR-VIS 977,642 70,952,503
Dubar Islamic Bank A-1 A- JCR-VIS 383.098 205,423
Faysal Bank Limited A-1+ AA PACRA 197,087 196,790
Habib Bank Limiled A-11 AAA JCR-VIS 1,193,665 1.096.693
KASRB Bank Timited C B PACRA 725 725
MCB Bank Limited Al AAA PACRA 23,092,890 35.875.348
Mcczan Bonk Limited A-1+ AA JCR-VIS - 1,000
NTB Bank Limited Al- AA- PACRA 500,944 500,944
National Bank of Pakistan A-11 AAA JCR-VIS 3,178,332 635,984
Silk bunk Tamited A-2 A- JCR-VIS 241.060 241,060
Samba Bank Limited A-1 AA JCR-VIS 56,676 56,111
Saudi Pak Bank A-11 AA JCR-VIS - -
Sindh Bank Timited A-1+ AA JCR-VIS 7,866,831 12,345,573
Soneri Bank Limited Al AA- PACRA 233,697 212.609
Summil Bank Limited A-1 A- JCR-VIS 417.417 15,773
The bank Of Khyber A-1 A JCR-VIS 353,177 39.615
United Bank Limited A-11 AAA JCR-VIS 6,135,637 15,489,915

05.341.904 152,729,619
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36.4.1

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Company's income or the value ot its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return. Market risk comprises of currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk.

Currency risk

Currency misk is the risk that Toir values or fulure cash Mows of a fnancial instrument will Muctuate beeause of chimges in lorecign
exchange rales. Currency risk arises from sales, purchases and resulling balanees that are denominaled in a currency other than

lunctional curreney. The Company's polential currcney exposure compriscs ol

- Tramsactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monctary ilems,
- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues.

The potential currency exposures arc discussed below:

Transactional exposure in respect of non t‘llﬂ(.'ﬂ:(’ﬂﬂl CUFrrency monetary itemy

Monetary items, including financial asscis and liabilitics, denominated in currencics other than the functional currency of the
Company are periodically restaled 1o rupec equivalent, and the asgocialed gain or loss is taken to the profit and loss account. The
loreign currency risk related to manetary items is managed as part of the risk management stratepy.

Monelary items, meluding Amancial asscts and labilites, denominated in currencics other than the Tunctional currency of the
Clompany arce periodically restated 10 rupee cquivalent, and the associated gam or loss 1s laken w0 the profit and loss account. The
lorcign currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk management strategy.

Exposure to currency risk

The Company's cxposurce (o currency risk al the reporting date was as follows:

2016 2015
Rupces Rupces
Balance sheet items
Torcign debtors - 222.662.152
Off balance sheet iteins
Outslanding letlers ol eredit (202,164,218) (32.389,824)
Net exposure (202,164,218) 190,272,328
Exchange rates applied during the year
The lollowing exchange rate has applicd during the year on transactions involving loreign currency.
2016
Spot rate Dollar Average rate
Buying Selling for the year
usb
Exchange rate during the year on transactions
involving forcign currency 103,75 105.74 104.5
2015
Spot rate Average rate for
Buying Selling the year
uUsD
Hxchange rate during the year on transactions
involving foreign currency 104.2 104.4 101.8
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36.4.2

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening of 10% in Pak Rupece against US dollar at the reporting date would have increased prolfit for the
year by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular (orcign curreney rates, remain
constant, The analysis 1s performed on the samce basis for 2015,

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
TfTeet on profit 20,216.422 (19,027.233)

The weakening of the PKR against foreign currencices would have had an equal but opposite iinpact on the prolit.

‘The sensitivily analysis prepared is nol neccssarily indicalive of the clleets on profit / (loss) for the year and asscls  liabilitics of the
Company.

Currency visk inanagenternt

Since the maximum amount exposed to currency risk is only 1.23% (2014: 0.19%) of the Company's total asscts, any adverse
favourable movement in the funclional curreney with respeet o US dollar will nol have any maigrial impact on the opcerational

laterest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market

interest rates. Signiticant interest rate risk exposures are primarily managed by a mix of borrowings at variable interest rates. At the
reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's signiticant interest bearing tinancial instruments was as tollows:

2016 2015 2016 2015
Elfective rate in Carrying amoeunt
----- Percentage - - - - - -------- Rupees-------
Financial assels
Lixed rate instruments
Bank balances - saving accounts 3.0% to 4.5% 7.00% to 8.75% 9,978,432 56,575,032
2016 2015 2016 2015
Effective rate in Carrying amount
————— Percentage - - - - - -------- Rupees-------
Financial liabilitics
Floating rate instruinent
Long term finances - secured 8.81% 1o 10.62%  9.34% to 13.96% 1,409,273,928 1,653,701,186
Liabilities against assets subject
lo finance lease - secured 10.06% to 12.07% 11.04% 1o 15.94% 152,525,388 186,210,542
Short term borrowings - secured 3.0% to 11.35% 4.50% 10 14.18% 2.872.,710,808 2,964,617,533
Fixed rate instruments
Export refinance Tacihity - secured 3.0% to 4.5% 4.5% 10 7.50% 2.386.658,000 2,554,200,000

Fair value sensitiviry analysis for fixed rale instruments

The Company docs not account Lor any [xed rate (nuancial asscts and liabilitics at Gadr value through profit or loss. Therelore a

A change of 100 basis poinls in interest rales al the reporting date would have inercased  (deercased) prolit or (loss) Lor the year by
the amounts shown below. Lhis analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
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2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
[iffect on profit (Increcase) 44,345,101 5%,045,293
Hffect on profit (Decrease) (44.345,101) (5%,045,293)

The sensilivily analysis prepared is nol necessarily indicalive of the elTects on profit / (loss) [or the year and assets / liabilities of the
Company.

Interest rate risk management

The Company manages interest rate risk through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be
adjusted. The short term borrowings and loans and advances by the Company have variable rate pricing that is mostly dependent on
Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate ("KIBOR™) as indicated in respective notes,

36.4.3 Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credil risk exisls when the changes in economic or industry (actors similarly alfect groups of counterparties whose
aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company's total credit exposure. The Company's portfolio of financial
instruments is broadly diversified and all other transactions are entered into with credit-worthy counterparties there-by mitigating
any significant concentrations of credit risk.

36.4.4 Other price risk

Other price risk is Lhe risk thal the [air value or [uture cash [lows ol a [inancial instrument will [lucluate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). ‘The Company believes that it is not exposed to other

Capital management
The Board’s policy 1s 1o mainlain an cflicienl capilal basce o ag lo mainiain investor, creditor and markel confidence and to suslain the
{uture development of ils business. The Board of Dircelors monitors the retum on capital cmployed, which the Company defines as
opcerating income divided by lotal capital cmployed. The Board of Direelors also momiors the level of dividends to ordimary sharcholders.
The Company's objeciives when managing capital arc:
(i)  tosafeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and henefits
(1) Lo provide an adequale retum to sharcholders.
The Company manages the capital structure in the context of cconomic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may. for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharchelders, issue
new shares, or scll asscts 1o reduce debt. The Company menitors capital on the basis of the debi-to-cquity ratio - calculated as a ratio ol total

debt 1o cquity.

The debl-to-equily ratios as at 30 September were as [ollows:

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Total debt 6,821,168,124 §,358,729,261
Total cquity and debt 12,550,988,505  13,235,137,156
Debt-to-equity ratio 54% 63%

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year. The Company is not subject to cxternally
mposed capital requirements, exeept those, related 1o maintenance ol vovenants including restriction on dividend declaration. commonly
imposcd by the providers ol debt finance.
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Remuneration of Chiel Exccutive, Directors and Exceutives

The aggrcgatc amounts charged in the financial statcments for the year for remuncration, including all bencfits to the

Chief Lxecutive, Directors and Lxecutives of the Company were as follows:

2016
Dircetors
Chicf exccutive Exceutive Non - ¢xecutive Exccutives
Rupees

Managerial remuneration - 6,400,000 330,000 41.156,997
Mecdical allowance - 640,000 33,000 4,115,700
Housce Rent Allowarnce - 2,560,000 132,000 16,462,799
Bonus - - - 2,207,431
Stall retirement bencelit - 800,000 41,250 5,035,290

- 10,400,000 536,250 68,978,217
Number of persons 1 1 S 50

2015
Direclors
Chicf exccutive Lixccutive Non - cxecutive lixccutives
Rupees

Managcrial remuncration - 286.000 6,400,000 30,736,968
Mecdical allowance - 28.600 640,000 3.073.697
TTouse Rent Allowance - 114,400 2,560,000 12,294,787
Bonus - 71.500 - 6,577,472
StaflT relirement benefit S 41,250 800,000 6,691,510

- 541,750 10,400,000 59,374,434
Number of persons 1 5 37
‘I'he Chief Lixecutive Officer, Dircctors and Lixecutives are provided with free use of Company maintained cars.
No meeling lee was paid 1o Direclors during the year (2015: Rs. Nil)
Number of ecmployces
The Company has cmployed [ollowing number ol persons: 2016 2015

Rupees Rupees

(Number of persons)

- As at 30 Sepiember 1,779 1.800

- Average number of caployees 1,762 1,746

Transactions with related partics

The rclated partics comprisc associated companics, Directors of the Company, key management personnel and other
related parties. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties
amounts due from and to related parties are shown under receivables and payables and remuneration of Directors and
key management personnel are disclosed in note 38. Other significant transactions with relaled parties are as (ollows:

. . Nature of 2016 2015
Name of party Relationship Transaction Rupees Rupocs
Riaz 3ottlers (Pvt) Limited  Associated Company D 93,544,293 83.204.022
Dircctors ot the Company Dircctors Loan repaid - net (36,911,866) (153.668.098)
Guest house rent 4,800,000 4,800,000
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42 Restriction on title and assets pledged as security 2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Mortgages and charges

Hypothecation of all present and future assets and properties 16,412,653,869  16,362,653,869
Mortgage over land and building 2,870,166,667 2,792,166,667
Pledge

Finished goods 3,515,211,049 4,963.966,022

43 Corresponding ligures

Corresponding (igures have been re-arranged and reclassilied, wherever necessary, for the purpose ol
comparison. Llowever, there were no material re-arrangements.

44 Date of authorisation for issue

These financial statements were authorised for issuc on  February 08, 2017 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

45 General

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Lahore
February 08, 2017 Chief Executive Director
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Proxy Form
Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd.
28" Annual General Meeting

Folio No./CDC A/c No.

I/We of

in the district of being a member/members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd
holding shares of Rs.10 each, hereby appoint Mr./Ms.

of a member of the Company, vide Registered Folio/CDC A/c
No. or failing him / her, as my/our proxy to vote

for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 28" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be hold at Noor Shadi Hall
49-N Industrial Area Gulberg-ll, Lahore on Thursday, March 02, 2017 at 10:00 am and at any adjournment thereof

or of any ballot to be taken in consequence thereof,

Signed this day of March, 2017
Witnesses:
1. Signature:

Name:

CNIC:

Address:

Affix Revenue
Stamp of Rupees
Five
Signature by Member(s)

2. Signature:

Name:

CNIC:

Address:
Note:

All proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office not less than forty eight
(48) hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting and must be duly stamped, sighed and
witnessed as required.
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